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FOREWORD

The reason why this topic was chosen was two fold. The
first was to carry out the assignment. Secondly and perhaps
Just as important, there has never been a detailed history of
the congregation ever written out. Since St. Luke's will
soon be celebrating its goldén annivefsaryﬁ it seems only ap-
propriate that such a history should be written for this oc=
casion. It 1s for this reason that seemingly trivial items
are mentioned. They are being used in an attempt to jog the
memory of the older members and to give some insisht into the
early years of the congregation to its newer members.

There are many questions which need answering and gaps
_Which neeéd fiiling. However, the answers to these questions
are now buried together with the founding fathers of the con-
gregation.

It is also my goal, in reference to the 50th anniversary,
that this paper would be Jjust a start and that as the time ap-
proaches, other members might be able to add personal touches

and fill in the gaps.




From Pillar To Post...

These words introduced an article run by the Saginaw
News on Saturday, December 7y 1940, The article drew at-
tention to the cornerstone laying of st, Luke's first per-
manent building. After reading about the early history df
the Congregation, one can see why thisg phrase is so fitting.
At that point in time, the congregation had already con-
ducted Services in four "houses" of worship and was present-
ly worshipping in the basement at Vincentis School., Unknown
to the Writer at that time, there was still one more move
that would be made, but that wasg nearly 26 years away.

St. Luke'g was establisheqd during the post-depression
€ra. There were nany problems Which existed, A report de-
livered by the District Mission Board to the Owosso con-
vention in 1930, noted the problems."There were two things
Which made mission work difficult. They were the financial
lag in the Synod and the depression, The depression was
€specially noticeable in the larger cities where the mission
congregations were located, Workers would lose their Jjobs

and earnings, They could not contribute financially,in the

the start of new missions in the state Impossible,: 1t was
a situation which would be regretted in all districts. for
mission work was/is our chier work, A restriction could

have only serious consequences,
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Nevertheless, in spite of this ominous report and the
serious overtones that it casts, the report continued that
the pastors of St. Paul's congregation on Saginaw's West side,
had begun a mission at Riverside Park. God's blessings for
the prosperity of their work were asked for.'

The Opening of the new mission is also noted in the
minutes of St. Paul's Church Council meeting held on April
27, 1930. The recording secretary wrote about the establish-
ment of a new mission at Riverside Park and that their»pastors
and teachers would serve it.

what would become St. Luke's Ev. Lutheran Church was con-
ceived, although it still had to endure many problems and |
hardships. '

At that time there were two other W.E.L,S. congregations
in the city. gst. Paul's numbered about 1350 énd St. John's
- numbered about 280, There were numerous other Lutheran con-
gregations located in Saglnaw, however, the southwest portion
of the city was without a Lutheran éhurch. St. John's, then
located on Elm Street, was the closest congregatién to serve
the area.

On February 23, 1930, the pastors of St. Paul's- Pastor
A. Westendorf and Pastor 0. Eckert-began to conductvservices
in a rented house on Stanley Street, in the vicinlity of
Merril Park and school. Several famllles’belohging to st.
Paul's attended the services. It seems that the families ﬁay
have numbered five, however, there are no statistics of-
ficlally recorded. The mission Wwas recognized as g daughter

congregation' of st. Paul's. Apparently, the Pastors met




- small., Already the mission numbered about 30 communicants

e
with little success, since 1t is recorded that the services
were discontinued. |

Services were begun again in 1931, 1In the summer of
that year, Tutor H. Zink was célled to serve this field. He
accepted the call and entered the field in early August. The
small group was now worshipping at 708 Burnham. Since Tutor ﬁﬂ
Zink desired to retain the position of tutor at M.L. S. and

since he already had that call, he resignhed his office ef«

fective September 1st. This was done with the assent of the
W.E.L.S. Mission Board. |

The Mission Board wasted no time and called candidate
Hilmer Eckert as pastor. He began his work on September 1st

with the five families from St. Paul's. The work was to be

carried out principally in the English tongue, according to
the Mission Board's report given in 1932 at the District
convention, ., »

A canvass of the area was made and;thé,results‘showed
that the area had.good potential. In the Same report.v%t
was stated that there was the need for an appfopriaté site

for the services. The rented house Was unsuitable and too

and about 50 Sunday School students, although a number of

people had left that part of the city.x The 50 Sunday Schoolk h
students could only with great effort be put’ into the small
room. However. the number could easlly expand if the mis-
8lonary had a larger room for the services, The lack of a
sultable site posed the biggest obstacle for the growth of.

the mission oongregation. If they could rent a larger house
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the Mission Board's mind would be put at ease, but that had
not happrened gt that point in time. The mission in the course
of the last 10 monthes (since September of 1931) had baptized
ten children and two adults. There were three children con-
firmed. Attendance at the services and at communion were
good. The statistics prompted the closing remark, "We are
happy to hear of the opening of this figld, rejoilce over the
progress made, and encourage the missionary to continue in
his appointed work." '

The Lord blessed the work. The congregation continued
to grow. A house at 1209 Maple was acquired and onvMay 30,
1933, services were held at the new location.

The group was formally organized as St. Luke®s Ev. Luth.

Church in a meeting held on September 10th. The cohstitution

was read and signed by 22 men. Mr. Sperzel was elected chair..

man of the meeting. The officers that were elected were:

E. Schmidt, chairman; H. Komsdorf, secretary; E. Schmidt and ,
H. Komsdorf, trustees; H. Frick amd M. Schmidt. auditors;

H. Weber and A. Burk, elders. '

One wonders why those men chose to incorporate under the

name St. Luke's. The reason will never be known. As is true

today, when a congregation tries to select an offioial name
which is distinctively their own, perhaps this was the reason,
There were no other congregations in the area with that nanme.
W-E.L.S. already had a St. Paul's and a St. John's. St. Mat.
thew's was located in Freeland. The Catholics could claim

St, Peter & St. Paul, St. Andrew, St. Stephen, and others.,

The other Lutheran churches either duplicated one of the a-

&

i
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bove names or chose names other than the apostle s The only
flaw in this theory is that St. Luke's Hospital was also lo-
cated on Saginaw's West side. |

The Church Council was soon empowered to make expendi-
tures up to the amount of $10.00. The mechanics of open-
ing and maintaining a mission can be clearly seen in the
minutes of the first meetings. The Church Council went a-
bout the business of acquiring chairs, candles, candle hold-
eérs, and a record book. An offer made by Mr. Weber was ac-
cepted and he set about constructing a baptismal font The
planist wasg given a present of $5.00 every three monthes.

‘The congregation filed an application for membership
with the president and was accepted as a memberp of the
Wisconsin Synod in June of 1934, »

The Successes and problems of the congregation's early
hlstory are recorded in the report to the District convention'
held in Lansing in 1934, It was noted that the group had
moved from the Burnham house to the house on Naple. The house
had been transformed 1nto a "pleasant church home."“ The,
basgic problem still remained the lack of a chapel was a hin-
drance to successful work. It wes also reported that the

congregation organized with 19 voting members, three of ' whom

had moved from the oity. In spite of the feot that the con-
gregation had undergone an almost complete change of member- ;i
ship, the statistics were encouraging: 47 communicants, 120

souls, and a Sunday School enrollment of 66, The congregation

also reducedﬁ;ts subsldy by $5.00 a month?'




-
The congregation gained local exposure’in a series of
articles run by the Saglnaw News about the congregations in
the city. On Saturday, November 3, 1934, under the heading
"St. Luke's Lutheran Church-One of City's Youngest," the writer

reported;

Officially little more than a year old, S8t.
Luke's Lutheran Church has been serving a num-
ber of families in the southern part of the west
side nearly five years. The present church build-
ing is a house which has been remodeled for ser-
vices. Some of the members, who are wood Work-
ers have fashioned an artistic altar at the front
of the main room. The congregation numbers 60
communicants members and a growing Sunday School
which has an enrollment of 92. Services are con-
ducted in German and English on alternate Sun-
days."
The article listed the officers of the congregation and

the officers of the ladies Ald Society. They were: M.
Lydia Schott, President; Mrs. Mary Robinson, Vice-president;
Mrs. Leona Price, Secretary; Mrs. Caroline Tillman, Treasur-

er,

The year 1935 brought along many more changes, English
and German services were still held on alternating Sundays |
and nnce again the congregation was outgrowing the chapel.

In January the Building Committee was to report on
what steps had been taken to procure a suitable building for

worship. On April 3rd, the Committee reported that property

could be purchased at 605 Sherman (Meade). Money would be
borrowed at 4% interest. The pastor was given the g0 a-
head to close the deal as scon as possible.. The éongre~
gatlon purchased gn modest home and remodelled 1t for church
purbosesg_ The total cost of this venture was $1776.00,

The chapel was on the first floor in what would be
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considered the living and dining room areas. A small cross
was placed on the roof of the porch in order to identify 1t
as St. Luke's. A member made lectern-which the congregation
sti1ll uses in one of the Sunday School rooms- served as the
lectern and the pulpit. The altar was set along the front
wall and had a crucifix and two candles on it. The baptis-
mal font was to the left of the congregation and was made by
one of the members. The congregation sat on wooden chairs .,
An upright plane was placed behind and to the side of the
seating area. This plano 1s still being used by the choir
and is in the largest Sunday School room. A simple hymn
board was hung near the altar. The pastor's office was
located on the second floor.g |

The congregation dedicated the chapel on'June 2, 1935,

The group continved to grow. It accepted 21 new mem-
bers that year. The statistics given iﬁ 1936 read: 180
souls, 64 communicants, and an adult confirmation class ofn

11.°

Synod subsidy was reduced by %5 00 and the church had ”
a total indebtedness of $1557.09, » ' |
If the: work was to have been done principally in-the
English language. it was not reflected in the servlce |
scheduled, In 1936 the Lenten servlces. first held in 1935.1
alternated between English and German as did the Sunday o
morning services. This schedule remained in effect through
out the year but was changed slightly in 1937. In the Octo-
ber Church Counéil meeting, it was finally recommended that

English sertices be conducted evefy Sunday at 10:30 and Ger-
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man services be held every other Sunday at 8:30. Lenten ser-
vices would remain the same with the exception that the Maun-
day Thursday service was to be conducted in English.

Lenten folders were introduced for the first time and
it was suggested that the communicants kneel for the lLord*s
Sﬁpper.

The report glven at the District Convention held in
Toledo in 1938 was brierf and is best summarized with its
orening statement, "This station hasrcontinued its steady
growth." There were how 202 souls and 80 communicants. The
Sunday School enrollment. slipped to 82 and an average Sun-
day attendance was 36.1

The feeling of change was in the alr in 1939, For five

years the congregation had been meeting for worship in the

. chapel and wag then faced by the same problem-inadequate

facilities, 1In the July Congregationsl meeting, the members
decided to ask Synod®s approval for"the'éonstruction;of a
new house of worship. A committee wasg chosen and preliminary

steps were taken. Since 1t was not possible to obtain ag-

- hother suitable building site. the congregation decided to

sell the chapel off the lot and built at the same location.

The following yeér e building committee was drawn up
consisting or H, Dankert, G. Scott, and H. Weber. The Com-
mittee repofted that 1t would cost $250 to move the chapel.
off of the lot (1t eventually ended up in the Sand Hill).
There wasg also some discussion to buy a lot on Ruby Street
and move*the.present chapel there, Here, 1t wodld eithepr

be sold or used ag a parsonage. A tentative option was tp
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be obtainegd S0 that if the congregation could g0 ahead, they
would be in the position to buy this property.

The District convention at Scio came before the next
Church Council meeting and the report was given that "the
church attendance has increased remarkably during the last
half year, go that the seating capacity of the present build-
ing frequently has been entirely inadequatea Within another
year the present building (the chapel at 605 Sherman) should
be fully paid for.m The debt stood at $263.00 as of March
31, 1940, The congregation now consisted of 269 souls, 126
communicants, 100 attending Sunday School, and an average
church attendance of 46 at the English services and 18 at the
German services. The Synod Subsidy contifired to be reduced.g

In July or 1940, carpenters and architects weré con-
tacted in order to get figures and plans on remodeling the
chapel or building 8 new church. The August meeting was
crucial. The question which faces all congregations about
to undertake a building brogram was asked., How do you raise
the money for the new chapel? Indeed, should the cdngregat-

tion build g new chapel or not? The dédision.was made,° 4

were not present at the meeting, giving thenm the first op~-
pbortunity to buy the house. 71t was alggmﬁ%on to burchase

the house across the street at 602 Meade for a barsonage,
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The church received $600 for the ol4 chapel,

The gears were set in motion. on August 23, Joseph
Goddeyne, an architect fronm Bay City, was engaged tb draw
up plans for the new chureh. Bids were opened on October
8th. on octobver 25th, 1940, the ground was broken for the
church building. on November 4th, the general contract was
awarded to Charles Engelhardt of Bay City. wm. Bichter &

Son had the plumbing contract, Klopf & Son were in charge of

‘the heating plant, and Hans Rupp was awardéd the eléctrical

work.,

The Saginaw-News. on December 7th, wrote the fdllowing

article:

In Monday's edition, under the heédline; “Itali&ps.

British Fight on Desert," there was g piéturekwith;the com-

ment "Young Congregation Laying New Home‘sWCCrné?sténé,"
Pictured with‘trOWel'in hand was Pastor

o

Otto Eckert of st.
Paul'é.’ |

The service Was”COﬂdUctedfundef:a tent;on;a ver§'do1d
day. Since there were no other musicléms aVallabie.vthe fi
8inging was accompanied by an accordidn pléyera“'j}f7ff“

During the 5% monthes that the bﬁilding»wasﬁundQEVCOné'

struction, the Obngregation met fdrAwérshlpfih ﬁhé]Vinoeht}“;2ﬂ¢@*
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School basement .

The congregation desired to hold services 1n the new

" church building on Palm Sunday and on Easter. As a result,

March 30 wgg chosen as the day of dedication. In the last
week, there was much work that still.remained to be done.
Through the whole hearted Co-operation of all who worked on
the new building and a number of members who cheerfully put
in long hours of hard work, the building though not com-
pleted, wasg ready for use.

The dedication took place on March 30, 1941, Pastor
Westendorr spoke in the morning service ang Pastor oOtto
Eckert, sr. Spoke in the afternoon service,

fhe total amount borrowed gt this time was $13.807.
When evepythingﬁas counted; the total expenditures amounted
to.$13.588.9?. The report on the new building was complete,
all the way down to the 26¢ spent for sawdust. There was
$1.99 spent fopr the wood, iron, ang rope for the bell. The.
cost of used sinks and two lavoratories was $13.00, Thev
price for used and neyw light fixtures was $35562. The
turpentine for the floor was $1.99IL |

In order to get the church property cleaned up, a gener-
al work day was scheduled for Saturday June 7th. "Tools
needed are shovels, rakes, wheelbarrows., Bring along also
& cheerful disposition ang ambitionw Volunteers were
solicited from the congregation for the upkeep and clean-

1 ;
ing of the building.a ' '

Other items or lmportance at the Council meetings wWere
Such

noted, as the lack of an organist. The shortage(was to be
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anncunced in the other churches and if there were no re-
sults, an ad was to be placed in the paper. The disposal
of the left over fill dirt was delegated to the building
committee. A vacuum cleaner was bought for $5.00. Per-
mission was granted to Mr. wWeber in order to burchase a rub-
ber stamp with st. Luke's Church on it,. Mr. Dankert was
authorized to buy grass seed for the lawn. Flags for the
church were donated by Mr. Brandle and By Fick.

The congregation now numbered 269 souls, 140 communicants,
and a Sunday School attendance of 115. Average attendance
at the Engliéh services was 72 and 26 attended the German
services.l3

The next biennium was one of steady growth. There is
recorded a motion that'the organist be paid. Two monthes
later 1t is noted that a motion was made and carried to look
for a new organist and to go outside the congregation if
necessary. The secretary could‘also rent.'an adding machine
Whenever he sees a necessity.

The 1944 Distriet report shows the growth of the congre-
gation. There were now 313 souls, 161 communicants, and the
Sunday School attendance dropped to 98, Church attendance~
at both services increased slightly.. FinallyB a parsonage
was needed.ﬂ .

In the September meeting of 1946, this need was solved.
The motion was made and carried to purchase the house at
602 Meade (across the street from the church), if it was

bossible. It was acquired for $7000 with the money borrowed
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locslly. Prior to the purchase of the parsonage, the pastor
had been living with his father in St. Paul's parsonage on
Bond Street.

The organist was now paid $1.00 per service.

In April of 1946, St. Paul's decided to assist St.
Luke's and purchased lots for the congregation for a future
school. This action was carried out in the July meetingfg

While the '50's was s period of controversy for the
Synod and its relationship with the LC—MS,' The years were
ones of steady growth spiritually and physically.

An organ fund wmas established in 1950. The Synod sub-
sldy was reduced and finally dropped in 1952. A service was
held on July 7th celebrating the occasion. Boﬁh the church
and the parsonage debt were liquidated in 1953. On October

2% the mortgage burning took place and the sermon, based upon

1 Kings 8:57, had the theme "Prayver for God's Continued Grace =+ -

lo
and Blessing,"

There were a number of other projects undeftékén in'the
course of the ten years, The parsonage was wired and paint-
ed. The church floor was sanded.: The chimes were purchased
in 1956.‘ The organist was paid $2.00 per service; |

A typical Sunday morning in those years included a.

7:30 English oommunion service. a 9:00 German service, Sun«
day School was at 10:10, and at 11:00 was the second English
service, . |

The question of’the school 1ots came up in the early 50°¢

It was agreeq upon that the lots were not blg enough nor were

S.
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they desirable. It was unaninmous to sell the lots with any
members of the congregation to be given priority to purchase
them. The money received from the lots was offered to 3t.
Paul's, who in turn declined the offer.

As was mentioned, this was an era when there was un-
rest in the Synod. 8St. Luke's was not immuned from the doubts
or the questions, since there were many LC-MS churches in the
area. The church declined the offer of a local ALC church
to join in a joint Reformation service. However, during these
troublesome years, there was no strife with=1in the congrega-
tion. The membership changes that did occur were a result
of members moving and not é result of the controversy. Per-
haps, the reason why the congregation did not suffer as much
as other congregations in the area and in the ®ynod as a
whole, was because it was well informed w%tb the 1lssues that
were being discussed.

Beginning already in 1954, there was a report given on
Church Union to the Council and Voters. In the following six
Years, the other issues were talked about: our position a-
gainst scouting, essays about Lutheran church bodies, articles
on the arguments against chapléincy. chaplaincy and the

armed forces religilon, politics in the church, a report on

‘the'joint‘elders meetlng on the relationship between LC-MS

and WELS, Northwestern Lutheran articles and reports, reports
from the Synod president about the Missourl Synod, an article
about co-operation in externals, and othersQ As the contro-

versy heightened, the topics dealt with 1nter»synodical

4

e
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matters, of particular importance ang concern about the
continueqd resigning ofr pastors and teachers fronp our Synod.

The second problem that the congregation was faceq with
wWas not unfamiliar, l.e., church expansion. During this early
period, specifics are a bit sketchy. The problem was first
mentioned in the January 13,‘1957 Counéil meeting. An ex-
bansion committee consisting éf E. Schuetz, 4. Klement, 1,
Stenzel, w. Roeske, and B, Gaiéer was estabiished. They pre-
sented their first report in April. Property on West Michigan,
apparently between Grout and Maple, was up for sale. The rarcel
of land was 11 lots long‘and two lots deep; The congregation
was willing to offer #$10,000, However, the brice was set at
$12,000, Another piece of broperty on Maple Stréet by the
pickle factory was checked out. 4 périod of,fime e1aspedvbut .
in the April 12, 1959 Council meeting,’ the mattéf‘was brought rb“
up again, ’ | a ‘

The Expansion Committee presented a detailed report on
what lay ahead, There was no doubt that expanslon‘wés need-
ed. It wasg Teported that there was overcrowding in the 2nd

Service each Sunday, which resulted in a lack of parking

Winter monthes, The,;ack of space‘was,equally ﬁyoublesome

in the work or tpe Sunday School, making 1t difficult to ex.

band or even handle it Properly, .




-17-

With the addition of a third Sunday service. This would be
only a temporary measure. It was pointed out that it would
place an undue burden upon the pastor and the desired effect
was doubtful since most fam:lies preferred attending a Sun-
day morning service. A third English service would be
scheduled for the afternoon or evenlng, since the morning
was booked solid, There was concern expressed for those at-
tending the German service, still conducted twice a month.
Providing that the people who attended this service agreed,
it was suggested to have thesge services scheduled in the
evening. This would mean a net increase of only two services
per month, rather than four or five, if the English service
was scheduled in the afterhoon.

Plan two considered the possibility of adding to the

present church building and property. Again, this would be

- only a temporary measure since it would not provide for the

congregations desires for the future. Even If the house and
the lots adjacent’to the church property could be purchas-

ed, this plan would simply provide for greater seating capa-
city, while the parking problem would still remain. The park—
ing problem woulgd discourage those who might consider at-
tending the church or the Sunday School° The cost of‘re;
modelling, purchasing, clearing, etc; for the'purpése of
bproviding a parking area or for developing a Chrlstian Day
School would be staggering. "It ig impossible to estimate

the length of time fhat willl pass before the congregation _ 

w1ll be anxious to start their own school However; the_g 

7




seen from the effort of many of our Synod‘s congregations
who have such schools. v (While the rrade school gquestion
was not new, since many of the children of the congregation
had attendeq St. Paul's Day School ang MLS, this was the
first time that it was offiqayily recorded in the minutes, §
Plan three was considered g long range program. Tt
would be working against the normail sentimentality attached
to the present church building and location. At the same
time it hagd to be recognized that the need for the expan-
slon of the Lord's work witn—in the congregation was a
brime consideration, Re-location bresented the opportunity
to realize g much greater sense of satisfaction in further
developing this work instead of curtaiiing it. Property
Just outside the western edge of the city limits was preéentn
ly being offered at a reasonable price; This property‘wnnldA
have been impossible to obtaipn at a later date.’ To gvoidién-
croachment upon other congregations«especially Bethany'wh;ch
had not . moved to their present location but whowagrshipplng
on State Stwéétwéffeoﬁ&@énter- and: to femain in tne;same
general area.‘thetland Search was confined to;pynperty South

of GratiotJan A ‘ G 5 ;
Prtpbsalvnﬁmbef i'was”aocebted,' Thnse atténainé the Ger-
man services were to be contacted ip reference to a‘time
change for the services; Plan number 2 was rejected. Pro-
bosal number 3vwés also acceptéd, altnough a speciai meeting

was to be called in order to make a final decision as to the
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best pieces of Property available.

There were two parcels of land in the running. The one
consisted of 27 acres at the price of $32,000. This proper-
ty is locategd near the railroad tracks on South Center,
where the Central Church of the Nazarene now stands. The
second parcel consisted of rive acres at the cost of $15,000.
This was originally a barecel-of 30 acres on which State Lanes
Bowling Alley had an option, Re-zoning of thisg area did not
occur and so five acres were up for sale to the church, The
other 25 acres went to Wright Reai}ty.

Because of the size and the ﬁrice, the Centér Street

Property was rejected. The Gratiot Street parcel was accept-

ed by a 15 to 12 vote. The closeness of the vote exXpress-
ed‘the feeling of sentimentélity in remaining at the pre-

sent location., A $5,000 down payment was made. With that
the 50's came to an end.

The climax of ten years of planning ocdured 1n 1967
when the present church building wasg dedicaﬁed.g‘But before
this was to happen, many obstacles and chan@esﬁwere,qnan
countered, | |  .‘ / }

The Synod contrc?ersy came to é clesé!w;thfver&yiittle

effect on the gdngregation.  There appearédth_bé no‘préblem’

in meeting the payments on the new pfoperty and frequently,
largerhpayments were made, Improvement,éf ﬁhe church at |
Meade continued-g hew outside bulletin board was constructéd
%Qy’H. Strieter‘in '59 and later moved to the Present site.

@hinting was.done, Sldewalks were leveled and lmproved =+
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on both the church property and at the parsonage, and once
again an orgenist was heeded.

In October of 1962, the congregation suffered the loss
of their pastor due to an unexpected and fetal: pedestrian
acclident. Pasgtor Eckert had served the congregation for
31 years.,

The vacancy pastor for 23% monthes was PastoriHerbert
Kuske of Christ v, Lutheran Church. The MLS professors and
Pastor 0. Frey took care of the worship services. At the
Speclal Congregational meeting held oo November 6, the congre-
gation extended a cszll to Pastor Wernor Wagner of Tucson,
Arizona. The cover letter géve a brief history of St. Luke's‘
and noted that it was ahout to enter g building program, It
also mentioned that German services were still held twice a
month and that a sermon read off in German would suffice.

Pastor Wagner accepted the call and was installed by
Pastor Kuske on January 14, 19673,

Withﬁin the year many changes occured. A Sunday bulletin

was put out aﬁd the church announced the times of the ser-

~Vices in the Saginaw News. (Prior to this the COuncil decided

not to run an a@ﬁnless the other WELS congregations in the
area would do likewise. German services were discontinued
on the first Sunday in November)

To add to the already troublesome parking problem, the
01cv of Saginaw converted the gouth side of Meade Street in-
to a fire lane and erected no parking signs there, eliminat-

ing much needegq parking spaces. They were later moved to the
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north side of the street, where the loss of parking spaces
Was: minimal due to the many driveways and alleys.

Maintenance was the primary order in 1964. The tubes
in the organ were repalred, painting,floor finishing, etc
was done at both church and barsonage.
§ In July, the congregation directed the Expansion Commit-
tee to draw Up a questionalire to determine the interest and
the desire of the members in regards to the new building'
By Janvary 1965 all the questionaires were returned and
talk turned toward the building of 8. Newiparsonage .

On April 25, 1965, the cOngregation engaged Thomas

Schmidt of Saginaw as the architect. The members set‘an

estimated ceiling of $150,000 for the new building and ask-

ed for a seating capacity of 300-400% The church property
at 605 Meade was to be sold, eventually, to Trinity Baptist
Chupch in July of the year.

The Expansion Committe was relieved of 1its work of plan-
ning with the thanks of the congregation and a Bullding Com-
mittee was appoimted to supervise the actual building opera-

tion. The committees for the undertaking consisted of

Finance Committee i Building Committee
Walter Roeske, Chairman , Leonard Grams, Chairmani'*
Harold Fritzler, Secretary ©  Lyle 'Jacobs ;

Robert Dittenber i ot Kenneth Lample
George Kaufman ' ~ - Harold Strieter, Ex offlcio

August Klement
Harold Strieter, Ex officio

Blds were received, arrangements for a loan were made
With the Heitner Corporation of st. Louls, Mo., and work was

now ready td[begln. The ground breaking ceremony was held




on June 12, 1966, .

At the September 25th Congregational meeting, the pastor
reported that he had received a call from St. Matﬁhew's Ev.
Lutheran Church of Janesville, Wisconsin. He asked for his
release on Qctober 9 effective as of October 30th..

‘TAv special meetingaﬁeld for the calling of St. Luke's
third pastor on October 16th. The pastors on the call list
conslsted of G. Cares, Monree; H. Sauer,Muskegon; A, Walther,
Milwaukee; T, Horneber, Zilwaukee and T. Frey were added to
the list. The call was extended and then declined by Pastor
Horneber. o0n November 27, another call meeting was held.

The 1list consisted of Pastors Sauer, Cares, and Walther,
Professor Kaesemeyer was added to the list. The call was
extnded and accepted by Pastor Sauer. He was installed om
January 29, 1967 by Pastor Brenner of Bay City.

Pastor Kuske served as &acancy pastor.

Meanwhile, there were other developments. a Joint
meeting was held with Bethany, Christ, and St. John's in re-
gards to establishing a joint Christian Day School.

The work of the Building Committee continued. An esti-
mate was taken on the church and parsonage, They were valﬁed
at $35,000 and $15,00 respectively.  An ad wasvplacéd in the

paper for the selling of the churoh.‘ The congregation re-.

celved an offer Prom: the Board of Control at MLS in reference
lng

to the possibility sbf hold worship services and Sunday School

in their gymnasium, if the new church was not finished before

the buyers of the old church desired to move.in.

5,?[
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As was written breviously, the buyer was Trinity Baptist,
who bought the church and property for $23,000, a littieibe—
low the price of $27,000 that the congregation had hoped for.

Cornerstone laying for the new building took place on

June 4, 1967 and the dedication of the building was on June

25, 1967, Pastor Brenner delivered the sermon in the morning

service and Pastor Kuske spoke at the afternoon service.

The offer made by MLS did not have to be used.

Therecwére rtwo: problemsithat :confronted the- congwegatien..
The first consisted of meeting the bayments for the ~churchs
The other was the growing concern over the general condition
of the Parsonage. »

The bparsonage on Meade Street was deteriorating.g*ln
spite of the repair work already done, namely. plumbing re—: 
pairsy plastering, and repairs to the front steps, the house
Was in need of more work. In April of 1972 the parsonage
Was inspected to gee what could - -be done.r The total’ cost
for repair work amounted to $5,691, 00. This figure 1ncladed
raint trimming. the repair to the Btorm windows and the screens;
garage and pnmoh reparrs.*The value of the parsonage would
increase an equal amount The question was raised as to how

to flnance the repalr Work. Should the congregation reup  55

pair it or sell the parsonage? The Heitner Corporation was
also drawn into it. They had no objectives to the selling
of the house providing that the broceed were to be applied
to another Plece of property. Ann appraisal of the house

was the firsﬁ 1tem on the check list. In April of 1973; :
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the appraisal figure came in at $16,900. It was then de-
cided to sell the property and to plan for another. Trinity
Baptist was given first crack at purchasing the property. An
offer of $13,900 was recelved from the church. The congre-
gation countered with an offer of $14,900, with a minimun of -
for of $14,500. It was finally sold in June for $15,000,
Part of this amount was used for the payment on improving the
church parking lot, the remainder was used as g down payment
on the new parsonage.

The congregation had two choices in regards to the new
parsonage. It could either build 8 house on the property
behind the church or it could purchase s house « In order
to build, water ang sewer connections were needed. - There
was also the problem of galning access to Gratiot or some
other road. The house itself Would cost about $36,000,

The‘second option was chosen. There were five_houses
on the initial list!cJ All of them wererlooated near. the
church or only a short drive away. - Some wereknewf.vOne was
nine years.old. The prices ranged from $39, 900'to‘ﬁ44 500,
In July of 1973 a house located at 1591 Briarson Street and_v
which was not on the 1ist presented in April was bought
It was a five year old house costing %37 800. "~ The congre—,‘
gation agreed on a 20 year plan, wlth payments of %250 per
month. A loan was taken out at 8% interest

During the years immediately follow1ng the building of
the.new church, a seoond problem de&%oped It seemed thatv‘

the congregation was always pleading for funds when pay~s
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ments were coming up. On one occasion, the congregation was
short $#7,000. 1In 1974 it lboked as 1f the congregation would
fall $13,000 short on the payment. On both of these occasions
the full payvment was made as the members, in one way or a-
nother, came up with the funds to make the rayment. The
struggle continued and climaxed in 1978-1979?U,A pavment of
$60,000 was needed to make the final payment on the princi-
Apal. Re-financing was a possibility but the interest rate
Wwould be tremendous. A speclal drive was held. With the aid
of an $8,000 loan from a member, the payment was made. The
member loan was repald and on September 30, 1979, a service
of thanksgiving was held as the title and deed to the church
property was presented to the congregation by the Heitner
Corporation. Professor Jerome Spaude of MLS was the guest
speaker on this occasion. The sermon based upon Psalm 100,
took as its theme "David's Picture of a Thankful Congrega-
tion." ) |

The retirement of the church building debt has made it
possible to double, triple, and even quadruple the monthly
payments made on the balance for the barsonage.

There were other things which happened during these yearé
since the congregation moved into 1ts new bullding. It hogt~aQ
ed the closing service. of Synod’s 1967 canvention and wit-
nessed the commissioning of one of our missionaries to Hong
Kong.ak

There have been numerous requestsbmade by businesses

and private home owners as to the purchase of our propertw

in the back forty, Buslnegses have continuouslv requested
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the usage of our parking lot, some presenting veryrtempt—
ing offers. Thege offers have all been turned down since
the church would be legally responsible for any accidental
injury on the church property whether or not we granted per-
mission for its use. Some have even offered a lifetime of
free usage of "their parking lots, if we would allow them to
use our lot.

Then there is the driving range néit door. There have
been a number of confrontations with the owners of the driving
range. "They had agreed to erect g high fence to stop any
stray golfr balls. Nevertheless. there were some very notable
slices and hooked Swings Which resnlted in broken windows.

The course ig liable for any and all damages to church ~pProperty
by misguided golf balls. regardless of prior or ‘present owner
ship. At timesg Windows went for monthes with- out belng re-
palred. The windshlelds of cars were not spared elther by

the early Sunday morning golfers, who needed to get 1n a few
extra practice swings before they hit the golf course. To

add fuel to the fire, the owners frequently confronted.the
ycungsters of the congregation, who were in the hablt of -
searching for golf balls and when one was found, to throw it

over the fence onto the range. The authcr and one of his

confirmation class members had this happen to them a number

of times. The problem still existg, only this time golf
clubs are taken along to chip the ball over the fence,
What does the future hold in store for St. Luke’s?

Only God knows for sure. The area has developed well. The
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driving range 1s for sale. There 1s talk that a new street
wWill run through the back of the property. If thls does hap-
bpen, apartments-which are blossoming in the area- or private
dwellings could be built there. There is great potential
for a mission outreach. |

The church itself has now established an organ fund?aThe
Christian Day School is‘still on the back burner.

Indeed, God alone knows what will eventﬁally happen.
God willing, the congregation will continue to grow outward-

ly and more important, inwardly in His Word and Sacraments.

P
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Report of the Dist. Mission B4, 1930, putlished in
in The Synodic Report of the Convention of the Mich.
District, NPH, Milwaukee, pages 37-38, 41.

Report of the District Mission Bd, 1932, p. 33.
Report of the District Mission Bd, 1934, p. 31,

Saginaw News, November 3, 1934, "st, Luke's Church-
One of City's Youngest ., "

Personal pictures

Report of the District Mission Bd., 1936, p. 30-31.
Report of the District Mission Bd., 1938, p. 27.
Report of the District Mission Bd., 1940, P. 29,

Saginews News, December 7, 1940, "Young Congregation
laying New Home's Cornerstone."

Saginéw News, December 9, 1940, n»y Big‘Moment."’
Report on St. Luke's Ev. Luth New Church»Building.
Letter accompanying the above report..

Report of the District Mission Bd., 1942. p. 36,
Report of the District Mlission Bd., 1944; pP. 43-44,
ﬁeport of the District Mission Bd., 1946, p. 36.

Correction: The subsldy was eliminated in 1952,

The parsonage debt was through on July 7, 1952, 97he
service on July 7th was for the subsidy and parsonage
debt elimination. The mortgage on the church ended on
October 29,1953, The service of thanksgiving wa.s
held on Thanksgiving Day, November 25, 1954,

Report of the Planning Committee to fhe Voting Membersg
of St. Luke's Ev. Luth. Church. , April 12, 1959,

Heating and Plumbingmﬂemer Plumbing and Heating Inec.
Electrical Contractor-Lighthouse Electric,

Other possibilities: 1133 8t. Andrews Rd 44,500 new
‘ 4785 Brook Rd 43,900 4 vrs,
870 Westchester Dr.43,900 g9 yrs,
Crutchrield 44,500 new
331 'N. Frost 39,900
© Plymouth ppr. 35,900




20 page 25

21 page 25

<2 page 27

End notes, Additions, and/or Corrections (cont_)

During this time, the Church was willed two broperties.
The' Kragenbrink broperty sold for $11,000 and the
Steinpress broperty sold for $6,000.

Of the $15,000 received for the old parsonage, $7,000
went to pay off barking lot improvements, $8,000 went
as a down payment on the new barsonage. - @

In June of 1968, tpe Men's Club Chicken Bar-b-Que wag
lnaugerated, It serves as g yearly celebration of the

new church dedication and 1s a prelude to the annual
Sunday School Picenic held on the same Sunday. All Proceedsg
80 to the building fund.

The previous organ was purchesed in June of 1970 from a
Mrs. Herm at the price of #1,000,




Signatures Affixed To the First Constitution

Adam Burk
Emmil Frick
Bugene Frick
R. PFrick

Le Grans
Andreas Kitsch
Louis Klein

Henry Komsdorf

Fred Price
Edward Raths
Fred Robinson
Edward Schmidt
Mike Schmidt
David Simon
Fred Smith

Mr. Soot

Henry Weber
Ben Wick
Carl Wick
Henry Wick

Henry Wiegand

Pastor Hilmar

Eckert
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